

Constitution  
of  
Club de l'Épagneul Breton of the United States, Inc.

ARTICLE I

ASSOCIATION NAME AND MARK

This Association shall be known as the “Club de l'Épagneul Breton of the United States, Inc.” hereinafter also referred to as the “Association” or “Club.” Black and white and color specimens of the official corporate name, official corporate emblem and official corporate service mark are attached to this Constitution as Exhibit “A.” The organization was formerly known as the French Brittany Gun Dog Association of America, Inc., Club de l'Épagneul Breton des Etats-Unis d'Amérique, Épagneul Breton Club, U.S.A.

ARTICLE II

OBJECTIVES

The objectives of the Association shall be to:

A. Protect the Épagneul Breton breed and maintain the standard laid down in field work, appearance and conformation for the Épagneul Breton, also sometimes informally referenced as the “French Brittany Spaniel.”

B. Maintain and achieve formal separation of the Épagneul Breton breed from the American Brittany breed in the United States and to insure for perpetuity the maintenance of a studbook and registry containing purebred Épagneul Bretons, such official registry to be administered and maintained by the United Kennel Club, Inc., located in Kalamazoo, Michigan, U.S.A. Members of the Association will strive to maintain the Épagneul Breton breed as a breed separate and distinct for the breed's unique physical conformation, body type, working qualities and other unique characteristics.

C. Require judges at field trials, tests of natural ability (T.A.N.), conformation competitions/shows sponsored by the Association and licensed by the United Kennel Club, Inc. to judge strictly as possible according to the official standards, rules, policies and procedures employed by the original breed association known as the Club Epagneul Breton of France, which is the country from which the Epagneul Breton breed originated.

D. In conjunction with the United Kennel Club, Inc. (hereinafter "UKC") as sanctioning body and licensing entity, to organize and conduct field trials, tests of natural ability (hereinafter designated as T.A.N.), water retrieving tests/water hunting tests, and conformation exhibitions (shows) that are designed specifically for foot hunting Epagneul Bretons, incorporating as far as possible, the French rules, procedures and standards for field and conformation events.

E. In conjunction with the United Kennel Club, Inc. or any other approved registration body in the United States to enact, promulgate, maintain and employ the official conformation standard for the breed as recommended, enacted, promulgated, maintained and employed by the Club Epagneul Breton of France, as the parent breed club in the Epagneul Breton breed's country of origin.

F. Encourage members to hunt their dogs and to enter them in UKC licensed field trials, tests of natural ability (T.A.N.), conformation exhibitions (shows) and to encourage members to have their dogs formally confirmed as meeting the official conformation standard of the breed.

G. Encourage members to breed Epagneul Bretons that are registered by the United Kennel Club, Inc. and which have been officially confirmed by confirmateurs approved by this Association.

H. Gather and disseminate to Association members and the general public up to date information and data from relevant scientific research in canine genetics and psychology pertinent to maintenance, development, training, breeding and enhancement of the Epagneul Breton breed.

I. Present trophies/certificates/awards at field trials, tests of natural ability (T.A.N.), water retrieving tests/water hunting tests, conformation exhibitions (shows) and other events as sponsored by the Association, or by affiliated clubs at the local level and at any such events licensed by the United Kennel Club, Inc.

J. Seek to foster cooperation with other organizations around the world promoting and protecting the Epagneul Breton breed, to include but not be limited to the Club Epagneul Breton in France.

K. Promote the general health and proper appearance of the breed through promoting responsible and ethical breeding practices by and through a voluntary Breeder's Code of Ethics.

L. Promote the general health of the breed through promulgation of recommended breeding criteria which take into consideration evaluations for canine hip dysplasia which are certified by the Orthopedic Foundation for Animals (commonly known as "OFA") or the University of Pennsylvania Hip Improvement Program (commonly known as "PennHip") for breeding stock.

M. Promote and maintain proper type and conformation of the Epagneul Breton breed by encouraging the official confirmation of breeding stock, and such other organizational policies as will promote and protect the breed's unique physical conformation and desired traits, dependability and health.

N. Provide the media and public with information about the Epagneul Breton breed.

O. In all ways possible prevent any breeding of Epagneul Bretons to American Brittany dogs which are not certified and registered as purebred Epagneul Bretons, and to prevent the crossbreeding of Epagneul Bretons to dogs of other breeds.

P. Provide a forum for fellowship, mutual cooperation and development of friendships among owners and fanciers of the Epagneul Breton breed in the United States and around the world.

Q. Promote the conservation of game and specifically upland game birds in the United States and around the world and to preserve and promote the heritage of hunting in the United States and around the world.

R. To preserve and promote the training of pointing dogs and the heritage of hunting upland game birds with pointing dogs in the United States and around the world.

### ARTICLE III

#### ASSOCIATION PROFITS

The Association shall not be conducted or operated for profit and no part of any profits or remainder or residue from dues, fees, sales or donations to the Association shall benefit any member or individual. The Association shall endeavor to acquire and maintain status and designation as a non-profit organization with the Internal Revenue Service of the United States and the State of Missouri, or any other applicable state under which the Association is organized in the future.

### ARTICLE IV

#### RULES FOR LICENSED EVENTS

All events sponsored by the Association and affiliated regional clubs will be run in accordance with the rules, policies and procedures adopted by the Club de l'Épagneul Breton of the United States, Inc. and the rules, regulations and procedures for field trials, tests of natural

ability (T.A.N.), water retrieving tests/water hunting tests and conformation exhibitions/shows as administered, promulgated and enforced by the United Kennel Club, Inc. It is the intent and fundamental purpose of the Association to follow as closely as possible and practical the rules, policies and procedures of the Club Epagneul Breton, the original and foundation breed association located in France so long as such rules are approved by the United Kennel Club, Inc. as official sanctioning body and licensing entity for such events in the United States.

## ARTICLE V

### REVISIONS

The members of the Association shall adopt and may from time to time revise the Constitution and Bylaws as proposed by the Board of Directors and as may be required to carry out these objectives. Such revisions shall be voted on and enacted by a simple majority of a quorum of the general membership at an annual meeting of the general membership or alternatively by general ballot submitted by U.S. mail, electronic mail, or a combination thereof to the general membership for voting, as may be designated by the Association's Board of Directors.

## ARTICLE VI

### POLICY OF NON-DISCRIMINATION

It shall be the official policy of Club de l'Epagneul Breton of the United States, Inc. that the Association shall not discriminate against any person or member upon the basis of race, sex, age, religion, creed or national origin.

## ARTICLE VII

### OFFICE

The principal office of the Association in the State of Missouri shall be located at Jeff City Filing, 222 E. Dunklin, Suite 102, Jefferson City, Missouri 65101. The Association may have such other offices, either within or without the State of Missouri, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the Association may require from time to time. The Association Board of Directors may hereafter designate an additional central business office address from time to time which shall be located in the area where the President shall reside and an alternate place of business and alternate business office address for the purpose of banking and filing of such legal documents as are from time to time incidental to the business of the Association which alternate office shall typically be located in the area where the Treasurer shall reside.

## ARTICLE VIII

### MEMBERS

The Association shall have members. Any action which would otherwise require approval by a majority of all members shall require only approval of the Board of Directors as set forth herein unless expressly reserved to the members. All rights which would otherwise vest in the members under the Missouri Non-Profit Corporation Act or any similar act of any other state under which the Association may hereafter be organized shall vest in the Association's Board of Directors, unless expressly reserved to the general membership as specified in the Constitution and Bylaws.

Exhibit "A"  
to  
Constitution  
of  
Club de l'Epagneul Breton of the United States, Inc.  
(specimen of corporation's registered trademark)



Bylaws  
of  
Club de l'Epagneul Breton of the United States, Inc.

ARTICLE I

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Eligibility. There shall be six categories of memberships open to any individual person, breeder, owner, or fancier of Epagneul Bretons who makes application and is approved for membership, subscribes to the purposes and objectives of the Association, agrees to abide by the Association Constitution and Bylaws, and Rules, Policies and Procedures, and who is in good standing with the Association and any official registration body/kennel club for the Epagneul Bretons. A seventh category of membership known as an "Affiliate" membership shall be open to entities or organizations who desire an official affiliation with the Association.

Section 2. Types of Membership.

Section 2.1. Single Membership. Open to members 18 years of age or older. Single members are entitled to one vote and are eligible to hold office in the Association.

Section 2.2. Charter Membership. Single or supporting members who joined the Association on or before January 1, 1998, shall be entitled to the designation "Charter Member."

Section 2.3. Family/Household Membership. Open to any two designated members of a household. Each family/household membership is entitled to two votes, one by each designated family member, so long as such members are eighteen (18) years of age.



Section 2.4. Honorary Membership. The Board of Directors may elect to honorary membership any member in good standing or any non-member who meets the eligibility requirements for membership. An affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Directors shall be required to elect an honorary member. Honorary members shall be exempt from dues, unless they voluntarily desire to pay dues and become a voting member. No honorary member may vote unless he/she elects to pay dues and become a voting member.

Section 2.5. Junior Membership. Junior membership is open to any individual who is 7 to 17 years of age. Juniors may convert to regular membership upon reaching their 18<sup>th</sup> birthday. Junior members shall not be entitled to vote nor eligible to hold office, but shall be eligible to participate in all events and compete for titles, trophies or awards at events offered by or through the Association.

Section 2.6. Supporting Membership. Same as single membership except that supporting members shall make a voluntary annual contribution in the form of a membership fee set by the Board of Directors and shall be afforded such additional benefits of membership as determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 2.7. Affiliate Membership. Affiliate membership shall be open to any entity, organization or club which desires an official affiliation with the Association. Affiliate members shall not be entitled to vote or hold office. Dues for affiliate members may be waived by vote of two-thirds of the Directors present at a meeting of the Board.

### Section 3. Membership Dues.

Section 3.1. Amount. Annual membership dues shall be determined by the Board of Directors not to exceed the following charges per membership, per year, absent modification of the annual membership fees by the Board of Directors by formal resolution, which may be passed at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

Single, Charter, Honorary and Affiliate Memberships - \$25.00

Family Membership - \$40.00

Junior Membership - \$10.00

Supporting Membership - \$100.00

Section 3.2. Payment of Dues. Dues are due and payable on or before the 1<sup>st</sup> day of September of each year for the following calendar year.

Section 3.3. Dues Statement. On August 15 of each year, or as soon thereafter as possible, the Association shall send to each member a statement of dues and renewal application for renewing membership for the coming year.

Section 3.4. Nonpayment of Dues. No member may vote, hold any office or serve on any committee whose dues are not paid for the current year. The membership of any member who has not paid his/her dues by January 1 of the corresponding calendar year shall lapse. After written notice to the member whose membership has lapsed, such member may apply to renew the membership.

Section 3.5. Billing. The Association, acting in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors may be authorized in its annual billing to enact a billing

structure and procedure to assist in the development of regional affiliate clubs/organizations.

#### Section 4. Application for Membership and Renewal.

Section 4.1. Submitting the Application. Each applicant for original membership or renewal of membership in the Association shall apply on a board-approved application which shall provide that the applicant agrees to abide by the Constitution, Bylaws, Rules, Policies and Procedures, and Code of Ethics of the Association and the rules and regulations of the United Kennel Club, Inc. and to support the work and objectives of the Association. The prospective member shall submit the completed application and dues payment for the applicable year to the Secretary or such person designated to receive the application and dues payment. Any person who pays the full membership fee for the applicable year in which the person becomes a new member shall be afforded the privileges of membership through December 31, of the subsequent calendar year and shall be sent a dues renewal notice contemporaneously with the other members in the following calendar year. The original application or any renewal application shall be processed in due course and the member approved, unless brought before the Board by the Secretary and rejected by a majority of the Board of Directors for failure to comply with the conditions of membership.

Section 5. Termination of Membership. Memberships may be terminated for any of the following reasons:

Section 5.1. Resignation. Any member in good standing may resign from the Association upon written notice to the Secretary. Resignation shall not discharge or eliminate any debt owed to the Association. Dues are considered an obligation to the Association and are incurred in full the first day of each fiscal year and no portion of any dues payment shall be refundable.

Section 5.2. Lapse/Non-Renewal. A membership will be considered as lapsed and automatically terminated if such member's dues remain unpaid after January 1 of the applicable year, unless membership is reinstated within thirty (30) days after written notice of the lapse by tender of a completed renewal application along with the dues payment for the applicable year. A tender of dues with an application to renew membership may result in reinstatement in the discretion of the Board of Directors when the membership has lapsed or expired after more than thirty (30) days written notice. In no case may a person be entitled to vote at any Association meeting, hold any office, serve on any committee or to have the privileges of membership whose dues are unpaid.

Section 5.3. Suspension. Any member may be suspended by the Board of Directors for good cause and for failing to comply with the conditions of membership. Such suspension may be for a specified period of time or may be indefinite in the discretion of the Board of Directors. Any member who is suspended or barred from the privileges of the United Kennel Club, Inc. may be suspended or barred from the privileges of

membership in the Association for the same period of time, at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Association.

Section 5.4. Expulsion. A membership may be terminated by expulsion for cause as provided in Article X, Section 4 of these Bylaws.

## ARTICLE II

### MEMBERSHIP BENEFITS

Section 1. Benefits. Members will receive the Association's magazine, periodic updates/newsletters and publications sent to the general membership, and invitations to events sponsored by the Association. Members shall also receive discounts for other products and services from time to time as determined by the Board of Directors. Supporting Members shall receive such additional benefits as determined by the Board from time to time.

Section 2. Cooperative Advertising Benefits. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to implement policies and procedures which permit members desiring to receive referrals as breeders to be listed in cooperative advertisements for an annual advertising fee as determined by the Board of Directors. The terms, form, manner and cost of such listings or advertisements shall be set by the Board of Directors. Members who qualify under the Breeder Cooperative Advertising Agreement application may elect to pay such fees to be listed as a Breeder and may also receive certain benefits of any cooperative advertising done by the Association. However, any services such as the breeder listing on the Association internet site and web page located at [www.ceb-us.org](http://www.ceb-us.org) are provided on a strictly voluntary basis, as a service to assist in the promotion of the Epagneul Breton breed. Consequently, no member is entitled to any such services, and no portion of the annual dues paid by a member

shall be deemed consideration for such services which are provided solely in the discretion of the Board of Directors. It shall be the sole responsibility of the member to pay any related costs or fees and to supply such information and to allow sufficient time for said information to be published to the public. All previous references in the Association's documents or publications which refer to "certified breeders," "registered breeders" or "breeders" are null, void and no longer in effect. The Association does not certify breeders and shall only be composed of members. The Association internet site and web page listings providing for cooperative advertising shall be updated annually on or about January 1 of each calendar year. Any other periodic updates or listings during the year shall be solely at the reasonable convenience of the party/contractor maintaining/updating the internet site and web page and as provided by any policies and procedures adopted by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Ownership and Control of Association's Official Website. The Association and its members shall collectively be the owner of record of all material posted on the Club's official website found at [www.ceb-us.org](http://www.ceb-us.org). The Association shall continue to maintain the domain name/address and link to the previous official website located at [www.frenchbrittany.org](http://www.frenchbrittany.org). The Association and its collective members shall own and be entitled to maintain the registered domain name(s), website addresses and to control the website hosting engine. Likewise the Association and its members via designated authorized members/officers shall pay for and control any rights to or modifications to the website material, the website hosting engine, and the website domain name. At least two Officers/Directors of the Association shall be vested with the passwords and other information necessary to maintain and update the

Association website. No individual member shall ever acquire any legal or ownership interest in any aspect of the Association's Official Internet Website, website addresses, or domain names.

### ARTICLE III

#### CERTIFICATION AND REGISTRATION

Section 1. Officially Designated Registration Body and Sanctioning/Licensing Entity. The United Kennel Club, Inc. of Kalamazoo, Michigan (otherwise known as "UKC") is hereby accepted and designated to the membership and general public by the Association as the official registration body for the Epagneul Breton breed in the United States and an official registration body for the breed around the world. The United Kennel Club, Inc. is further accepted and officially designated to the membership and general public by the Association as the official sanctioning body and licensing entity for field trials, tests of natural ability (T.A.N.), any subsequently enacted water hunting test/water retrieving test and all conformation exhibitions (shows). UKC will publish, disseminate, administer and enforce the rules, regulations and procedures for all such competitions. The Association may supplement such rules for events sponsored by the Association or affiliated clubs, so long as approved by the United Kennel Club, Inc.

Section 2. Pedigrees and Registration Records. Certification and registration of Epagneul Bretons will hereafter be done by and official pedigrees issued by the United Kennel Club, Inc. of Kalamazoo, Michigan. The UKC registry and studbook for the Epagneul Breton breed shall be maintained for perpetuity in the normal course of the UKC's business and such records shall constitute the official registry and studbook record for the Epagneul Breton breed in the United States and an official registry and studbook

for the Epagneul Breton breed around the world, and shall supercede the registry and studbook previously developed, administered and maintained by the Association subsequent to its founding in 1997. The Board of Directors shall designate a person or persons to serve as Single Registration Coordinator(s) on behalf of the Association, and to assist the UKC in evaluating and processing applications for single registrations of Epagneul Bretons by the UKC.

#### ARTICLE IV

##### ASSOCIATION YEAR

Section 1. Fiscal Year. The Association's fiscal year shall begin on the 1<sup>st</sup> day of January and end on the 31<sup>st</sup> day of December. "Fiscal Year" is the period during which the Association's accounting records are compiled.

Section 2. Official Year. The Association's official year shall begin on May 15 of each calendar year and end on May 14<sup>th</sup> of the subsequent year. "Official Year" is the period during which the Association's Officers and Directors shall take office and serve out a portion of their term for the corresponding official year.

#### ARTICLE V

##### MEETINGS

Section 1. Board Meetings. The annual official business meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held in conjunction with the annual Association membership meeting. Meetings of the Association Board of Directors shall be held at such times and places as the Board of Directors shall from time to time designate and may occur by telephone conference, video conference or in person. Written notice of each such meeting shall be published to the Board members by the Secretary at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meeting via U.S. mail or electronic mail at the address designated to



the Corporate Secretary by each Officer or Board member. Board Members may formally acknowledge notice in writing via electronic mail, and the meeting may proceed sooner than seven (7) days by unanimous consent. The quorum for such meetings shall be a majority of the Board. Proxy voting at any regular or special Board meetings shall not be allowed. In order to facilitate the prompt and efficient conduct of Association business, any Board meetings shall generally not be open to the general Membership, although Association members who do not serve upon the Board may be invited to attend or may upon request be authorized to attend, in the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Special Board Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Association President or by the Secretary upon receipt of a written request signed by at least four members of the Board. Such special meeting shall be held at such time and place as may be designated by the person authorized to call such meeting. The Secretary shall publish notice of such meeting at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meeting as provided in Section 1 above. Any such notice shall state the purpose of the meeting and no other business shall be transacted at such meeting unless unanimously agreed by all Directors in attendance. The quorum for such a meeting shall be a majority of the Board. The Board of Directors may also take action from time to time via written consent in lieu of formal meeting provided that a quorum for such action shall be a majority of the Directors, each signing or individually via electronic mail that they agree to a written consent of the action taken.

Section 3. Electronic Meetings/Action by Written Consent. Upon request of the President for action by written consent via formal resolution accompanied by seven (7) days

written notice, or upon formal written acknowledgment of notice by the Board and recorded by the Secretary sooner than seven (7) days, the Association may approve official business by recorded email vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. The Association and Board of Directors may utilize electronic mail communication to facilitate Association business and to consent in writing to official transactions requiring the advice and consent of the Board of Directors. Such action shall be appropriately documented by the Secretary in the form of Written Consent In Lieu of Meeting, and shall list all Directors voting in favor of and in opposition to such measure considered by the Board. Other regular Board meetings may be held via telephone conference accompanied by the requisite formal seven (7) day notice (or unanimous consent to proceed sooner than seven days), other than the annual official business meeting of the Board of Directors which shall be conducted in person. Nothing herein shall preclude a Director from being allowed to attend such in person meeting by conference call in lieu of an excused absence, in the event that it is impossible for such Director to attend in person.

Section 3.1. Association Board Discussions. No on-line discussion will be sanctioned by the Association. However, informal discussions concerning Association business may take place via electronic mail for the convenience of the Officers and Directors of the Association.

Section 4. Annual Membership Meeting. The annual meeting of the Association membership shall be held at such time and place as may be designated by the Board of Directors. Written notice of the time, place and location of this meeting shall be printed in the newsletter/magazine of the Association or official club website and shall be published to the membership not later than fifteen (15) days prior to and not sooner than ninety

(90) days prior to the meeting. The quorum for this and all other Association membership meetings shall be 10% of the members in good standing as the date of the annual membership meeting or date of the resolution when submitted to vote of the membership.

Section 5. Special Membership Meetings. Special membership meetings may be called by the President or by a two-thirds vote of the members of the Board of Directors who are present and voting at any meeting of the Board or who vote by mail via written consent in lieu of meeting. Such meeting shall be called by the Secretary upon receipt of written consent or request for a special meeting from the requisite number of Directors. Such special meetings shall be held in person at a place, date and hour as may be designated by the person or persons authorized herein to call such a meeting. Written notice of such a meeting shall be mailed by the Secretary at least fifteen (15) days and not more than ninety (90) days prior to the date of the meeting, and said notice shall state the purpose of the meeting and no other Association business may be transacted thereat. The quorum for such a meeting shall be 10% of the members in good standing as of the date of such meeting.

Section 6. Voting. Each Association member in good standing (other than Honorary and Junior members) whose dues are paid for the current year shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of the general membership at which the member is present or by U.S. mail or electronic mail ballot signed by such voting member(s). Proxy voting shall not be permitted at membership meetings.

Section 7. Passage of Resolutions by General Membership. The general membership shall be provided a forum and opportunity to pass resolutions or to otherwise make formal recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning conduct of the business of the

Association at any annual membership meeting or special membership meeting. Any such action or resolution shall be made pursuant to the applicable version of Robert's Rules of Order. Such resolutions or recommendations shall be advisory in nature and shall be taken up by the Board of Directors as an item of business at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. After consideration of and passage of any recommended action by resolution by the Board of Directors, such action, if approved shall take force and effect on the date passed, unless an effective date is otherwise specified.

## ARTICLE VI

### DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 1. Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall be composed of the President, President Elect, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer and not less than three (3) or more than eight (8) Directors elected at large from the membership, all of whom shall be members in good standing and all of whom shall be qualified and elected as provided in Article VII and shall serve until their successors are elected. In addition, the immediate past President who completes a term of office of at least one year to which he/she was duly elected (as opposed to being appointed to fill a vacancy for a portion of a year) shall automatically serve as a voting member of the Board for a period of one year, if not designated to hold an at large seat on the Board of Directors or to fill another office. In the year prior to expiration of the term of the President, a President Elect shall be nominated and elected by the Association and shall serve as a member of the Board of Directors for the year prior to commencement of his or her term as President. The President Elect shall assume the office of President in the succeeding year and shall thereafter serve for the designated term of office. General

management of the Association's affairs shall be entrusted to the Board of Directors acting by and through the Officers of the Association in the performance of their prescribed executive duties.

Section 2. Terms of Office. The Officers of the Association shall serve for the remainder of their present terms and thereafter Officers shall serve for two (2) year terms or until their successors are elected. The Association shall endeavor to diversify the leadership by taking into account as much as practical the geographic location and residence of Officers and Directors. Officers and Directors shall not be limited in the total number of terms of office for which they may be duly elected to serve during their lifetime. No Officer shall consecutively serve for more than a single term for a particular Officer position, except the Corporate Secretary, whose consecutive terms shall not be limited in number. The members of the Board of Directors shall be elected for three year terms, with a portion of such terms designed to expire in different years, and shall serve for no more than two consecutive terms as a Director prior to ceasing to serve as a Director for a period of one year. Any Director which has served two consecutive terms may also serve in one or more Officer positions as provided herein, but shall not be elected or appointed to fill a Director seat unless such person has not held a Director seat for more than one year (which one year period may include service in one or more Officer positions). Any Officer or Director who misses two consecutive Board meetings shall be removed from the Board of Directors and deemed to have resigned their position, unless the absent Officer or Director has secured an excused absence, or unless a majority of the Board members present and voting at the meeting from which the Officer or Director is absent for the second time votes to excuse one or both of the absences.

Section 3. Officers. The Association's Officers, consisting of the President, President-Elect, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer and any Assistant Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer shall serve in their respective capacities both with regard to the Association and its membership meetings and general business and the Board of Directors and its meetings. All Officers must be in good standing with the Association and the United Kennel Club, Inc. All Officers must own, hunt, field trial or show in conformation Epagneul Bretons in order to qualify for office, and must have been a member of the Association for a period of two consecutive years prior to assuming office. Officers shall have served on the Board of Directors or shall have served as Chairperson of a Committee of the Association prior to being nominated and duly qualified for such office. Officers shall have a substantial knowledge of and have demonstrated an exceptional devotion and commitment to the protection and advancement of the Epagneul Breton breed and the objectives of this Association.

Section 3.1. President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors, and shall have the duties and powers normally appurtenant to the office of the President as chief executive, in addition to those particularly specified in these Bylaws.

Section 3.2. President-Elect. In the year prior to expiration of the specified two year term of the President, the Association, acting by and through its Nominating Committee and membership, shall elect a person to the office of President-Elect. Upon being elected and assuming office for his/her one (1) year term, the President-Elect shall become a voting member of the Board of Directors, shall advise and assist the President,

and shall perform such specific duties as directed by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.3. Vice President and Assistant Vice Presidents. There shall be a Vice President elected to serve who shall perform such duties as requested by the President and Board of Directors. The Association may elect Assistant Vice Presidents to assist in managing the affairs of the Association in designated areas of responsibility. The Assistant Vice Presidents shall assist the President when and where possible in their designated areas of responsibility. In the event that the President resigns or becomes unable to serve for any reason, the Vice President shall have and assume the duties and exercise the powers of the President until officially installed by the Board as President. A person becoming President by virtue of a vacancy in the office shall serve as President until the next annual election at which the President shall be elected for the remainder of the present term of office. The Vice President shall also serve on the Board of Directors for his/her term of office. Any Assistant Vice Presidents elected shall not be entitled to serve on the Board of Directors solely by virtue of being chosen to serve as an Assistant Vice President but may serve as a Director if otherwise elected to the Board.

Section 3.4. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep an official record of all meetings of the Association and of the Board and of all matters of which a record shall be ordered by the Association; and the Secretary or his/her

designee shall have charge of the correspondence, including but not limited to:

- a. Notifying members, Officers and Directors of meetings and events;
- b. Notifying new members of their election to membership;
- c. Keeping a roll of the members of the Association with their addresses, phone numbers and email;
- d. Supervising acceptance of membership applications (original and renewing) and supervising corresponding with new members;
- e. Supervising the preparing, printing and mailing official Association ballots;
- f. Receiving nominations and certifying the qualification and election of candidates for Officer and Director positions;
- g. Certifying the results of all balloting done via the general membership;
- h. In the death, absence or incapacity of the President and Vice President designated to serve as interim President, the Secretary shall carry out the duties and exercising the powers of the President; and
- i. Carrying out other such duties as are prescribed in these Bylaws or as directed by the Board of Directors.

The Association through the Board of Directors may in its discretion select and designate Assistant Secretaries to assist the Secretary during his/her term of office in various areas as the business of the Association requires. Such Assistant Secretaries shall not become a



member of the Board of Directors solely by virtue of their appointment to assist the Secretary.

Section 3.5. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall collect and receive all moneys due or belonging to the Association. Moneys shall be deposited in a bank designated by resolution of the Board of Directors, in the name of the Association. The books shall at all times be accurate, up to date, and open to inspection by the Board and/or Officers. A Statement of Financial Condition for each fiscal year containing a description of revenue and expense categories shall be published to the membership on an annual basis through the Association magazine or other appropriate publication sent to the general membership. A report shall be given at every meeting of the Board of Directors or general membership concerning the condition of the Association's finances. At the annual business meeting of the Board of Directors and of the general membership, a written accounting shall be rendered by the Treasurer of all general categories of moneys received and expended during the previous fiscal year. In the event of the resignation, death, incapacity, suspension or expulsion of the Treasurer, all moneys and account books of the Association shall be handed over to the President and Board of Directors until the office of Treasurer is filled. The President shall sign all checks during this interim period. The Association shall maintain in force and effect a fidelity bond covering the Treasurer in an amount deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors, but not less than Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00). The Board of Directors may in its

discretion designate an Assistant Treasurer to assist the Treasurer during his/her term of office. Such Assistant Treasurer shall not become a member of the Board of Directors by virtue of such appointment.

Section 3.6. Directors. Each member of the Board of Directors shall be elected for a term of office of three (3) years unless a shorter initial term is specified for a new additional seat being filled by the Board of Directors as provided and permitted by these Bylaws or unless a director shall be appointed or elected to fill an unexpired term of a Director who resigns and cannot complete service of his/her term of office. Director terms of office shall be filled as presently designated and any future seats filled shall be established for staggered terms, such that no more than three of the Association's Board of Directors' terms or posts shall automatically expire within a single calendar year. Any person appointed or nominated to serve as a member of the Board of Directors shall be qualified for such office and any such person nominated by petition shall present proof of satisfaction of such qualification to the Secretary, who shall pass upon the validity of such nomination in writing within seven (7) days of receiving such nomination. Any person appointed by the Board of Directors to serve as Director, or nominated by the Nominating Committee to serve as Director, or nominated by petition of members to serve as Director shall have been a member of this Association for a minimum period of two (2) consecutive years prior to assuming office, and shall have been active in support of the work and activities of the Association for at least one (1) year. Any such person nominated to

serve as director shall demonstrate a substantial knowledge of and devotion and commitment to protect and advance the Epagneul Breton breed and the objectives of this Association. Service on committees of the Association prior to being nominated as Director is highly desirable, but not a formal prerequisite for qualification for service as a Director. Likewise, active service in an affiliated local club/organization shall be deemed desirable in terms of weighing qualifications for the position of Director of the Association, but not a formal prerequisite for qualification for service as Director.

Section 3.7. Board of Advisors. The Board of Directors shall be authorized to select a Board of Advisors of the Association by majority vote of the Board at an annual business meeting of the Board of Directors. Such persons named to the Association Board of Advisors shall serve for a term of three (3) years from the date selected. Membership upon the Board of Advisors shall be deemed an honorary position, and members of the Board of Advisors shall serve solely in an informal advisory capacity, acting as goodwill ambassadors for the club and assisting the Officers and Board as shall be requested from time to time. Advisors shall not be entitled to any vote concerning any issue before the Board of Directors. Qualification for the Board of Advisors shall be in the discretion of the Board of Directors, which shall consider naming persons who have provided distinguished and valuable service to the club over a period of several years. There shall be no limitation on the specific number of

Advisors elected by the Board of Directors or the number of terms for which they may be appointed to serve.

Section 4. Vacancies. Any vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors or among the Officers during the Association calendar year shall be filled until the next annual election by a majority vote of all the then members of the Board at its first regular meeting following the creation of such vacancy, or at a special Board meeting called for that purpose, except that a vacancy in the office of President shall be filled automatically by the Board as soon as practical and any resulting vacancy in any other office shall be contemporaneously filled by the Board. Any such Officer or Director seat filled by interim appointment shall thereafter stand for election by the general membership at the next annual election to the remainder of the unexpired term of the office assumed by virtue of appointment by the Board of Directors.

Section 5. Compensation. The Officers and members of the Board shall serve without compensation for time or labor but may be compensated for actual reasonable and necessary expenses in conducting the Association's business, if such reimbursement is specifically approved by the Board prior to expenses being incurred.

Section 6. Private Disputes. The Officers and Board of Directors shall not act as arbitrator of any dispute among members nor shall the Officers and Board of Directors be required to mediate or settle private disputes involving members. The Board of Directors shall act to conduct the business of the Association for the betterment of the entire membership.

## ARTICLE VII

### ELECTIONS

Section 1. Annual Election. The normal and customary election of Officers and Directors whose terms are expiring shall be conducted by secret written ballot of the general membership in good standing for the year during which such election shall be held, except that if no nominations are received by the Secretary as provided in Article VII, Section 2.4, no ballot will be necessary. In this case, the persons selected and nominated by the Nominating Committee and qualified for election by the Secretary will be declared and certified as elected by the Secretary on April 1 of such year. If additional nominations have been made as provided in Article VII, Section 2.4, an election by mail ballot shall be required. The nominated candidate receiving the greatest number of votes for each office or position on the Board shall be declared elected and shall promptly assume office as provided herein.

Section 2. Nominations. No person may be a candidate for an office or position on the Board who has not been nominated. Nominations cannot be made at the annual meeting or in any manner other than as provided in this Article.

Section 2.1. Nominating Committee. Before November 15, the President in consultation with the Board shall select a Nominating Committee, consisting of at least three (3) members and one (1) alternate, all members in good standing, at least one of which shall be a member of the Board of Directors. The President shall name one member of the Committee to serve as Chairperson, who shall be responsible for setting times and dates for committee meetings and for reporting results to the Association Secretary. The Nominating Committee may conduct its

business in person or by use of mail, fax, telephone or other electronic communication, provided that all decisions must be confirmed in writing to the Secretary and to all members of the committee promptly and no later than within ten (10) days after such decision concerning nominations is made.

Section 2.2. Tally Committee. The Nominating Committee may also serve as the Tally Committee, unless a separate Tally Committee is designated by the Board of Directors. The chairperson of the Tally Committee shall report the results of the election to the Secretary, who shall receive all ballots and maintain them for safekeeping for a period of at least one (1) year.

Section 2.3. Candidates. The Nominating Committee shall nominate from among the eligible members of the Association, one candidate for each Officer position as designated up for election by the Board and for each expiring position on the Board of Directors as designated as up for election by the Board and shall procure acceptance of each nominee. The Nominating Committee should consider geographical location and residence in representation of the membership when selecting nominees to the extent that it is practicable. No person shall be nominated for more than one expiring Officer position. Officers whose terms are expiring may be nominated as Board members as provided herein above in these Bylaws. The Nominating Committee shall submit its slate of nominated candidates to the Secretary not later than January 30. The Secretary shall cause the list of nominees to be published to the membership on the Association website or in the first semester issue of the Association

magazine prior to March 1 of the applicable year, such notice to include the full name of each nominee/candidate, the state in which the candidate resides and the applicable term of office, so that members may make additional nominations, as provided in the next section, if they so desire.

Section 2.4. Additional Nominations by Nomination Petition. Additional

nominations of eligible members for any Officer or Director position may be made by written nomination petition to be supplied by and submitted to the Secretary in a form approved and provided by the Board. Such nominations shall be endorsed and signed by at least five (5) Association members in good standing for the year in which the election is to be held. Such nominations shall be addressed to the Secretary and received at the Secretary's regular address on or before March 31 of the applicable election year, accompanied by a written acceptance of the nomination from each additional nominee and a letter or resume setting forth the nominee's/candidate's qualification for office as required by these Bylaws. No single person shall be nominated for more than one position as Officer or Director.

- a. If no valid additional nominations are received by the Secretary on or before March 31 of the applicable election year, the Nominating Committee's slate of candidates shall thereafter be declared and certified elected by the Secretary. In such event no balloting will be required.

b. If one or more valid nominations by petition are received by the Secretary on or before March 31, the Secretary shall determine whether each candidate nominated is properly qualified for such election as provided in these Bylaws and will notify the prospective candidate in writing if such candidate is determined not to be qualified. The Secretary will mail to each member in good standing a ballot listing in alphabetical order all of the nominees for each position, together with an envelope addressed to the chairperson of the Tally Committee at the chairperson's usual and customary address (such envelope shall not contain postage which will be supplied by the voting member). Ballots shall be mailed to the membership for voting no later than April 15 of the applicable year.

Section 2.5. Counting the Ballots. Ballots must be returned by U.S. mail postmarked to the chairperson of the Tally Committee not later than April 30. Ballots postmarked after that date shall be declared invalid and not counted, but shall be kept for safekeeping for a period of one year from the date of the election. The chairperson shall set a meeting time for the Tally Committee as soon as practicable after April 30 and a place convenient to all committee members, at which meeting the committee shall count the ballots. The chairperson shall report the election results to the Association Secretary immediately and the Secretary shall certify the results in writing as soon as possible and no later than May 10<sup>th</sup> of the applicable election year. All ballots and the envelopes in which they were received shall be given to the Secretary who shall keep them as



part of the Association's official records until the next election, to include any ballots not timely posted.

Section 2.6. Election Results. Election results will be communicated to the existing Board of Directors and Officers and candidates on the ballot promptly and shall be certified and announced by the Secretary to the general membership via the Association website.

Section 2.7. Change of Officers and Board Members. The newly elected Officers and Board members shall take office at the conclusion of the annual meeting nearest when they were elected, or as soon thereafter as possible after they are certified by the Secretary to have been elected in the event of a balloted election, but in no event later than May 15<sup>th</sup> of the applicable calendar year during which the election was held. Each retiring/exiting Officer and Board member shall turn over to his/her successor in office all properties and Association records relating to that office by May 15<sup>th</sup> of the applicable year.

## ARTICLE VIII

### CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS

Section 1. Contracts. The Board may authorize any Officer, Director or member to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association. Such authorizations shall normally be in writing absent exigent circumstances.

Section 2. Loans. No loan shall be contracted on behalf of the Association, and no evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 3. Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of the Association shall be signed by the Association Treasurer or President or such other agent or employee of the Association as authorized by the Board of Directors and in such a manner as shall from time to time be determined by the Board.

## ARTICLE IX

### COMMITTEES

Section 1. Appointing Committees. The President in consultation with the Board shall each year appoint such permanent or temporary committees as needed to advance the operation of the Association's business or to aid the Board on particular projects. Such committees and their work product shall be subject to the final advice, consent and approval of the Board of Directors of the Association. They shall have the minimum number of members as prescribed, and such additional members as may be desirable to accomplish the committee's charge.

Section 2. Terminating Committee Appointments. Any committee appointment may be terminated by the President, which action shall be ratified by a majority vote of the Board and the President in consultation with the Board may appoint successors to those persons whose service has been terminated.

Section 3. Permanent Committees. The following committees shall be permanent and shall be filled by the President in consultation with the Board:

Section 3.1. Committee on Single Registrations. This committee shall have a chairperson and shall consist of a minimum of three (3) additional members.

Section 3.2. Committee on Annual Meeting and Conclave. This committee shall have a chairperson and shall consist of a minimum of four (4) additional members and shall include the annual meeting coordinator.

Section 3.3. Committee on Field Trials, Tests of Natural Ability (T.A.N.) and Field Evaluation Procedures. This committee shall consist of a chairperson and a minimum of three (3) additional members. This committee shall develop and coordinate with the United Kennel Club, Inc. any rules or issues relating to field trials, water hunting tests/water retrieving tests, tests of natural ability (T.A.N.) and any other field competitions approved by the Board and shall coordinate all National level field events. Final approval of all proposed rules to be submitted to UKC, which rules are applicable to field competitions shall be vested in the Board of Directors.

Section 3.4. Committee on Conformation Exhibitions. This Committee shall consist of a chairperson and a minimum of five (5) additional members. This committee shall develop and coordinate any rules or issues relating to conformation events, exhibitions and shows licensed by the United Kennel Club, Inc. and shall coordinate any National level conformation specialty show events sponsored by the Association.

Section 3.5. Committee on Conformation and Official Confirmation and Use of the Epagneul Breton. This committee shall be made up of a chairman and a minimum of four (4) additional members. This committee shall be responsible for reviewing and recommending to the Board of Directors

any changes to the official UKC conformation standard of the Epagneul Breton. The committee shall be further responsible for development and oversight of the Association's policies and procedures for the official confirming of Epagneul Bretons and for recording, maintaining and publishing the results of such evaluations. Such committee shall oversee the maintenance and updating of the Association database of dogs which have been officially confirmed. Such committee shall further study and recommend procedures for the development, training and certification of any persons who may hereafter be certified by the Association as confirmateurs of the Epagneul Breton breed in the United States.

Section 3.6. Marketing Committee. This committee shall consist of a chairperson and a minimum of three (3) additional members. This committee shall develop and provide for the marketing of all Association merchandise.

Section 3.7. International Liaison Committee. This committee shall consist of a chairperson and a minimum of at least three (3) members and shall promote relations with affiliate and related breed clubs around the world to include the CEB-France.

Section 3.8. Communications Committee. This committee shall be made up of two subcommittees, the Magazine Committee and the Website Committee, and shall be composed of a minimum of five (5) additional members. The editor of the magazine shall have responsibility and authority for assimilating, producing and editing the Association's semi-annual magazine publication known as "L'Épagneul Breton." However, the

editor may in his/her discretion call upon members of the Publications Committee for advice, assistance and input from time to time as may be needed or required. The Communications Website Subcommittee shall also be responsible for developing such additional publications as the business of the Association shall require and publish such information at the Association website located at [www.ceb-us.org](http://www.ceb-us.org).

Section 3.9. Membership Committee. This committee shall coordinate retention of existing members and recruitment of new members and shall consist of a chairperson and a minimum of three (3) additional members.

Section 3.10. Committee on Judges. This committee shall be composed of a chairperson, and such additional members as are licensed by the United Kennel Club, Inc. as field trial and conformation judges. The committee shall be responsible for development and continuing education of qualified judges for field events and conformation judges for the Epagneul Breton in the United States, to assist in the recruitment, education and qualification of new field and conformation judges, and shall assist in the official qualification of and performance of field trial and conformation judging by visiting foreign judges from other countries.

Section 3.11. Nominating Committee/Tally Committee. This committee shall consist of a chairperson and a minimum of three (3) additional members, at least one of whom shall be a member of the Board of Directors. This committee shall be responsible for the recommendation, nomination

and qualification of all Officer and Director positions as a portion of such seats shall come available for election each year.

Section 3.12. Temporary Committees. The President, with the advice and consent of the Board of Directors, shall be authorized to create additional committees so as to carry out the functions and activities of the Association. No additional committee shall be deemed permanent, unless expressly designated as such by resolution of the Board of Directors. Such committees shall consist of a chairperson and a minimum of at least three (3) additional members in good standing and at the time of creation shall be given a committee charge and shall serve at the pleasure of the President and Board of Directors.

## ARTICLE X

### DISCIPLINE

Section 1. Suspension. Any member who is suspended from the privileges of the United Kennel Club, Inc. or any other officially recognized registration body or kennel club may be automatically suspended from the privileges of this Association for a specified time period or indefinitely, at the Board of Directors' discretion.

Section 2. Charges. Any member may refer charges against a member for alleged misconduct prejudicial to the best interests of the Association or the breed or in violation of the conditions of membership agreed to in the application for membership. Written charges with specifications must be filed in duplicate with the Secretary together with a deposit via money order or certified check of \$75.00, which shall be forfeited if such charges are not sustained by the Board following a hearing. The Secretary shall promptly send a copy of the charges to each member of the Board or present them at

a Board meeting, and the Board shall first consider whether the actions alleged in the charges, if proven, might constitute conduct prejudicial to the best interests of the Association or the breed or in violation of the conditions for membership. If the Board considers that the charges do not allege prejudicial conduct upon which the Board may act, the Board may refuse to entertain jurisdiction and dismiss the charge. If the Board entertains jurisdiction of the charges, it shall hold a hearing by the Board as soon as possible thereafter. The Secretary shall promptly send one copy of the charges to the accused member by registered mail together with a notice of the hearing which may be held in person or via telephone conference and a written notice informing that the respondent shall respond in writing to the charges within thirty (30) days.

Section 3. Board Hearing. The Board shall have complete authority to conduct a hearing via telephone or in person and shall consider the written complaint and charges and the response. The Board may render a decision with the complainant and/or respondent either present or absent, but both complainant and respondent shall be treated uniformly in that regard. Should the charges be sustained after hearing all the evidence and testimony presented by the complainant and respondent, the Board may by a majority vote of those present suspend the respondent from all privileges of the Association for such time as may be deemed appropriate. If the Board deems that punishment in the form of suspension is insufficient, it may also expel such member. Such member may appeal the general membership for reinstatement at the next annual meeting of the general membership. Immediately after the Board has reached a decision, its finding shall be put in written form and filed with the Secretary. The

Secretary, in turn, shall notify each of the parties of the Board's decision and penalty, if any.

Section 4. Expulsion. Expulsion of a member from the Association shall be accomplished only following a Board hearing and upon the Board's recommendation as provided in Section 3 of this Article. The respondent shall have the privilege of responding through a written response. The President shall read the charges, and the findings and recommendations, and shall supply the written response of the respondent to the Board. The Board shall then vote on the proposed expulsion and may vote by secret ballot if requested by any member of the Board. A two-thirds vote of those present and voting at the meeting shall be necessary for expulsion. If expulsion is not so voted, the suspension shall stand for the period designated. If expelled, the member may petition the Board to appeal such expulsion to the general membership by giving notice of intent to appeal at the next annual meeting of the Association. Such notice of appeal shall be sent to the Corporate Secretary by the respondent within thirty (30) days of the date written notice is provided to respondent of such decision and shall be provided to the Board via certified mail or electronic mail sent by the expelled member/appellant. Such expulsion may be lifted and reversed only by a majority vote of a quorum of the general membership at such meeting at which the appeal is presented.

## ARTICLE XI

### AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Proposing Amendments. Amendments to this Constitution and Bylaws may be proposed by the Board of Directors upon publication of notice to the general membership via the Association website or magazine at least thirty (30) days prior to



presentation to the general membership for a vote. Amendments may also be initiated by the membership by written petition addressed to the Secretary signed by 10% of the membership in good standing for the year in which the amendment is proposed. Amendments proposed by the Board of Directors may be voted upon at the next annual meeting of the general membership, or by a ballot mailing as set forth in this Article. Amendments proposed by petition of the members shall be promptly considered by the Board of Directors and shall be submitted to the members with the recommendations of a majority of the Board of Directors by the Secretary for a vote (in the Board's discretion) by a quorum of the general membership present and voting at the next annual meeting of the general membership at which such amendments are to be considered. Such amendments may also be voted on by mailing a ballot to the general membership if the next Annual Membership Meeting is more than one hundred twenty (120) days away.

Section 2. Publishing Proposed Amendments. Proposed amendments shall be published on the Association website or in the magazine issue at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting at which time such vote to enact such proposed amendments shall occur.

Section 3. Voting Procedures. Proposed amendments to the Constitution and Bylaws shall be voted upon by the membership at the next annual meeting or by ballots which are returned via postmark by a date specified on the ballot.

## ARTICLE XII

### DISSOLUTION

The Association may be dissolved at any time by the written consent of not less than two-thirds of the members in good standing. In the event of the dissolution of the Association, whether voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law, other than for purposes of

reorganization, none of the property of the Association nor any proceeds thereof nor any assets of the Association shall be distributed to any members of the Association, but after payment of the debts of the Association, its property and assets shall be given to a charitable organization selected by the Board which exists for purposes which will benefit the Epagneul Breton breed as directly as possible.

## ARTICLE XIII

### ORDER OF BUSINESS

Section 1. Membership Meetings. At meetings of the Association, the order of business, so far as the character and nature of the meeting may permit, shall be as follows:

- Approval of Minutes of Last Meeting
- Report of President
- Report of Vice President
- Report of Secretary
- Report of Membership Chairman
- Report of Treasurer
- Reports of Committees
- Announcement of Election of Officers and Board (at annual meeting)
- Unfinished Business
- New Business
- Adjournment

Section 2. Board Meetings. At meetings of the Board, the order of business, unless otherwise directed by majority vote of those present, shall be as follows:

- Approval of Minutes of Last Meeting
- Election of New Members, Officers and Appointees
- Report of President
- Report of Vice President
- Report of Secretary
- Report of Treasurer
- Reports of Committees
- Unfinished Business
- New Business
- Adjournment

ARTICLE XIV

PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in the current edition of “Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised,” shall govern the Association in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws and any other special rules of order the Association may adopt.

ARTICLE XV

CERTIFICATION

We hereby certify that the foregoing Constitution and Bylaws constitute the official Constitution and Bylaws of the Club de l’Epagneul Breton of the United States, Inc. as duly proposed by its Board of Directors and duly adopted, amended and ratified by the general membership at the Annual Membership Meeting of the Association on March 27, 2009 in Muscatine, Iowa. Such Constitution and Bylaws shall by the terms of adoption become effective as of their date of official adoption as set forth herein.

This \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2009.

Club de l’Epagneul Breton of the United States, Inc.

By: \_\_\_\_\_  
President

Attest: \_\_\_\_\_  
Secretary

(Corporate Seal)